

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ORGANIZATION & STRUCTURE	3
IMPORTANT CONTACTS	4
CODE OF CONDUCT	4
MEMBERSHIP	6
Evaluations	6
Registration	6
Fees & Billing	6
Resignation & Termination	7
Communications	8
Fundraising/Sponsorship	8
VOLUNTEERING	9
Volunteer Requirements	9
Officials Incentive Program	10
Volunteer Job Descriptions	10
TEAM POLICIES	11
Parent On Deck Policy	
Minor Athlete Abuse Prevention Policy (MAAPP)	12
Social Media Policy	12
Action Plan to Prevent Bullying	13
Health Policy	14
Other Protection Policies	14
PRACTICE GROUPS	14
SWIM MEETS	15
USA Swim Meets	15
DSA Meets	15
TEAM APPAREL AND GEAR	16
Appendix 1 - Proper respect during Flag Ceremonies	16
Appendix 2 - Grievance Procedure	17
Where to Report	17
How Grievances Will Be Handled	18
Appendix 3 - Code of Conduct Administration	19

ORGANIZATION & STRUCTURE

Mission Statement: OPST is a diverse community of coaches, swimmers, and families dedicated to helping

young athletes realize their full potential in and out of the pool. Our goal is to build character and dedication through teamwork and competition in a safe and positive

environment.

Vision Statement: OPST strives to instill a life-long love of swimming and build competitive USA

swimming on the Eastern Shore where every swimmer has the opportunity to

compete at the highest level in a safe and inclusive environment.

Ocean Pines Swim Team (OPST) is a non-profit entity organized for the purpose of providing competitive swimming opportunities for youth between the ages of 5 and 18. Since 1975 we have been a complementary aspect of the Ocean Pines Community. We are constantly growing, training young people to be strong swimmers, and maintaining a well-rounded competitive swim team.

Our team leadership consists of a Head Coach and a parent-volunteer Board of Directors (BOD). The BOD is made up of the President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer, as well as up to three Members-At-Large. Being a 501(c) (3) nonprofit organization, people or organizations who contribute to our Club can take a tax deduction for their contribution. OPST is grateful for any donations or contributions made on behalf of our Club. Individuals or corporations can contact any of our BODS to make a contribution.

Ocean Pines Swim Team is a member of USA Swimming- the governing body of amateur competitive swimming in the United States. OPST is a part of the Eastern Zone Region and competes locally as a member of Maryland Swimming.

Ocean Pines Swim Team is also a member of the Delmarva Swim Association (DSA). DSA governs our summer league, June-July, in which so many of our swimmers participate, learn to love the sport, and perhaps choose to pursue the sport year-round.

OPST utilizes the following facilities in Ocean Pines:

September — June (practices only)
Ocean Pines Sports Core Pool
11144 Cathell Road Ocean Pines, MD 21811
410-641-5255

<u>Send all mailed correspondence to:</u> OPST P.O. Box 1485, Ocean Pines, MD 21811 June — July (practices & DSA home meets)
Ocean Pines Swim & Racquet Club Pool
10 Seabreeze Road, Ocean Pines, MD 21811
410-641-7227

IMPORTANT CONTACTS

Head Coach: Scott McIntire opsthammerheads@gmail.com

Board of Directors:

President Linsey Parker president@opsthammerheads.org

Vice President VACANT

Treasurer Olga Bisultanava <u>billing@opsthammerheads.org</u>
Secretary Jennifer Wills <u>jennifer.wills@opsthammerheads.org</u>
Member at Large Kristen Greenwood kristen@opsthammerheads.org

Billing: billing@opsthammerheads.org

Registration: registration@opsthammerheads.org

CODE OF CONDUCT

The OPST Code of Conduct reflects our <u>core values</u>, and it applies to all members, existing, pending or in consideration, including parents, swimmers, staff and other volunteers.

Core Values

- Teaching proper stroke technique is incredibly important
- Exhibit honesty, integrity, and good sportsmanship
- Individual encouragement from the leadership team
- Promote a wholesome, fun and enjoyable lifetime activity
- Individual progress is emphasized over championship qualification

ATHLETES:

The purpose of a code of conduct for athletes is to establish a consistent expectation for athletes' behavior. Membership with OPST requires all athletes to agree to the following statements:

- I will respect and show courtesy to my teammates, coaches, and competitors at all times.
- I will demonstrate good sportsmanship at all practices and meets.
- I will set a good example of behavior and work ethic for my younger teammates.
- I will be respectful of my teammates' feelings and personal space. Swimmers who exhibit sexist, racist, homophobic, or otherwise inappropriate behavior will be faced with consequences.
- I will be on time and prepared (both equipment and mentally) for scheduled practices and swim meets.
- I will show respect for all facilities and other property (including locker rooms) used during practices, competitions, and team activities.
- I will refrain from foul language, violence, behavior deemed dishonest, offensive, or illegal.

- If I disagree with an official's call, I will talk with my coach and not approach the official directly.
- I will obey all of USA Swimming's rules and codes of conduct.
- I will obey all of Safe Sport policies; which includes but not limited to, no cell phones or any devices that include a camera or video capabilities in locker rooms at practices and meets.

PARENTS:

The purpose of a code of conduct for parents is to establish consistent expectations for behavior by parents. All OPST families must understand the important growth and developmental support that your swimmer's participation fosters. Families must also understand that it is essential to provide the coaching staff and directors with respect and the authority to coach the team and run the program. All parents/guardians must agree with the following statements upon swimmer enrollment.

- I will set the right example for our children by demonstrating sportsmanship and always showing respect and common courtesy to the team members, coaches, directors, competitors, officials, parents, and all facilities.
- I will get involved by volunteering, cheering at meets, and talking with my child and their coach about their progress.
- I will refrain from coaching my child from the stands during meets.
- I understand the Safe Sport Rules and will follow them. For example, I will not go behind the blocks except when timing and I will not take photographs from behind the blocks.
- I understand that criticizing, name-calling, use of abusive language or gestures directed toward coaches, directors, officials, volunteers, and/or any participating swimmer will not be tolerated.
- I will respect the integrity of the officials.
- I will respect the directives of coaches, understanding that any requests are in the best interest of swimmers.
- I will respect the directives of the Board of Directors, understanding that any requests are in the best interests of the swimmers and the organization as a whole.
- I will follow the OPST Grievance Policy to address inappropriate conduct or conduct that violates the OPST Code of Conduct.
- I will direct any other general coaching related questions first to the Head Coach; then, if not satisfied, to the Board of Directors in writing.

COACHES:

- At all times, adhere to USA Swimming's rules and code of conduct.
- Set a good example of respect and sportsmanship for participants and fans to follow.
- Act and dress with professionalism and dignity in a manner suitable to his/her profession.
- Respect officials and their judgment and abide by the rules of the event.
- Treat opposing coaches, participants, and spectators with respect.
- Instruct participants in sportsmanship and demand that they display good sportsmanship.
- Coach in a positive manner and do not use derogatory comments or abusive language.

- Win with humility and lose with dignity.
- Treat every athlete fairly, justly, impartially, intelligently, and with sensitivity.
- Always place the well-being, health, and safety of swimmers above all other considerations, including developing performance.
- Continue to seek and maintain their own professional development in all areas in relation to coaching and teaching children.
- Always maintain a professional separation between coach and athlete.
- Be respectful of swimmers' feelings and personal space. Coaches who exhibit sexist, racist, homophobic, or otherwise inappropriate behavior will be faced with consequences.

In addition, OPST adapts <u>USA Swimming Article 304 Code of Conduct</u> For more information on the Code of Conduct and our disciplinary procedures, *see Appendix 3*.

<u>MEMBERSHIP</u>

Potential OPST swimmers have:

- The DESIRE to become part of a competitive and successful swim team.
- The commitment to progress and improve through hard work and dedication to training.

Evaluations

Swimmers must complete a coach evaluation to be considered for membership / registration. Evaluations are offered when there is space on the team for new members, but it does not guarantee placement on the roster as spots may vary. Upon completion of the evaluation, coaches will determine training group placement based on swimming ability, age, and strength. Alternatively, coaches may recommend lessons or swim team prep classes.

Any child between the ages of five (5) and eighteen (18) is eligible to request to join the swim team.

Registration

Contact: registration@opsthammerheads.org

Swimmers may request to join the team during open registration periods, which are typically 2-3 times a year. Anyone wishing to join outside of open registration must have prior approval from the Board of Directors President and Head Coach.

Registered swimmers must abide by the rules, policies, and Codes of Conduct of the governing bodies for which they are registered (i.e. OPST, DSA, and/or USA Swimming)

Fees & Billing

Contact: billing@opsthammerheads.org

OPST BODs strives to keep the team fees as low as possible, while providing a high-quality experience consistent with the mission statement and core values. The rates for each season are variable depending on the practice group and length of the season.

Typical Season Dues & Fees could include the following:

- **OPST Registration Fee:** \$80 per swimmer. Due at registration. Covers two caps, t-shirt & administrative costs.
- **Dues (monthly installments):** The first month's dues are paid at the time of registration. Remaining payments are automatically charged the 1st of each month and include a passthrough processing charge to cover credit card fees. **The financial commitment to the team is for the entire season**, with the ability to pay across monthly installments.
- Meet Entry fees (host team): Charged per committed swim meet. These are set by the host team and vary, but
 can range from \$10-\$15 per event plus a per swimmer facility fee that can be up to \$25. All USA Meets charge
 entry fees to compete. These are in addition to monthly dues. They are prepaid to the host team and are nonrefundable once entries are sent to the host team, which is usually 2-3 weeks before the meet.
- **Meet Surcharge (OPST):** \$15 per swimmer for each committed USA meet. This is to help offset the cost of OPST coach travel expenses.
- **Volunteer Service Hour Fees:** Charge for not completing minimum required volunteer hours. Please see the Volunteer Policy Requirements.
- **USA Swimming Membership Fee:** Registering and paying for a USA Swimming Membership is a separate process and fee apart from OPST Registration, and is a requirement for all OPST swimmers regardless of practice group. Includes USA Swimming Registration and the Maryland Athlete Fee. Typically around \$105 per swimmer
- Credit Card Fees: Fees put in place by TeamUnify to cover processing of credit cards.

Billing Process:

- The fees and dues are non-refundable.
- The financial commitment to the team is for the entire season, with the ability to pay across monthly installments.
- OPST members may contact the Treasurer (<u>billing@opsthammerheads.org</u>) with questions regarding the
 accuracy of any bill. If it is determined that a member was incorrectly charged, the member is entitled to a
 prompt refund of all incorrect amounts.
- Fees and charges incurred through OPST are processed through our website at www.opsthammerheads.org on the 1st of each month.
- Dues and fees are auto-billed to the credit card on file and are non-refundable. You will receive notification to your on-file email with a summary of charges. Details can also be found via your TeamUnify account.
- Families are required to have an active payment method on file in the TeamUnify system. Failure to maintain a valid credit card or bank account information for ACH payments can result in failed payments and late fees.
- Any family who accrues a delinquent account will be suspended from practices, meets, invitationals and other
 events. The suspension will remain in effect until the account is brought current. Additionally, outstanding
 balances must be paid prior to any future season registration. If a family registers with an outstanding balance,
 the registration and registration charges may be reverted until the account balance is paid in full.
- Monthly dues do not include meet fees, travel costs, equipment costs or service fees. Those are all billed separately (and automatically) as applicable.
- If a swimmer is transferred to a different practice group by the coaching staff, the monthly installments will be revised to the cost associated with the new group.

Resignation & Termination

Contact: president@opsthammerheads.org

- A member in good standing may request to resign from OPST upon written notice to the Board of Directors with reason for request. The Board may grant the request under the following circumstances: 1) when a member of the family is required to relocate out of state, 2) when one or more swimmers of a family is certified physically incapable of participating in the program by a physician, or 3) when the Board deems a request meritorious. The board will have 30 days from the time of written request to respond.
- Membership in the swim team may be terminated in writing to parent (and persons in loco parentis) by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Head Coach or the Board itself for any of the following reasons:
 - Breach of Bylaws.
 - o Breach of Conduct, as outlined in the Team Handbook.
 - Failure to pay dues or fees, within the times set forth by the Board.
 - Determination by the Board that the member has failed in a material or serious degree to observe the rules of conduct of the Team or has engaged in conduct materially and seriously prejudicial to the interests and purposes of the team.

Communications

To keep communication between Coaches, swimmers, and parents, we ask all families to provide an email address, cell phone number, and update their account if either changes. OPST maintains a policy of strict privacy and never provides contact information to anyone outside the team.

Email – primary form of communication from the Board of Directors and Coaches. It is the members responsibility to update their email address on their account should changes occur.

Website - OPST maintains a web page to provide information about the team, announce upcoming events, view practice calendars, allow families to sign up to volunteer for meets, important updates, program changes, links to other swimming related web sites, and contacting the coaches and board members. Refer to the website often for team information. www.opsthammerheads.org

REMIND messaging system is used to send out important, time sensitive, reminders via a group text system.

Social Media - OPST also maintains Facebook and Instagram Pages where team updates, evaluation dates, and team events are shared.

In the event of a same day practice/meet cancellation or change, notices are shared **ONLY via REMIND**.

Please refer to the current <u>Board of Directors list</u> to determine the proper contact person for any specific team questions you may have. For general inquiries please use the team email address, <u>opsthammerheads@gmail.com</u>.

Fundraising/Sponsorship

Each family is expected to participate in fundraising for the team. The team provides several fundraising events throughout the year. Refer to the <u>Support OPST</u> section of the website for current details. Other fundraising activities may be added throughout the year.

VOLUNTEERING

Volunteer Requirements

OPST is a nonprofit organization and requires parent engagement and involvement to carry out its mission. OPST has a reputation for being a model team when it comes to volunteering and parent participation has been instrumental in creating and maintaining our team culture. Working together as parents provides our swimmers with examples of teamwork, commitment, and dedication that are the characteristics and traits that our team strives to instill in our swimmers.

Short Course and Long Course Seasons

It is expected that parents volunteer. Although volunteer needs are less than during the DSA Summer Season, the team may request help from time to time. Volunteer needs may include assisting with meets, helping with family/team social events, lobby door coverage, serving as a member on the board of directors and other needs as may be communicated throughout the season.

DSA Summer Season Specific ONLY

The dedicated efforts of our parents are vital. For every summer home meet we need about 60 people (not including coaches!). At away meets we need about 30 volunteers, most of them timers and age group parents.

To ensure that the consistent and full participation necessary to host/attend a well-run meet is evenly shared across the team:

- Each family will be required to volunteer a minimum of 5 service hours over the course of the summer at various meets & events.
- Hammerhead families are expected to volunteer at EVERY meet your swimmer attends, so it would likely be more than 5 hours.
- At the conclusion of the season, families who have not met their 5-hour minimum will be auto-billed a \$30/hour fee for the hours missed.
- If you sign up or are assigned, but can't fulfill the role, it is your responsibility to find a replacement. There will be a \$40 fee for no-shows or late arrivals.
- If OPST is short volunteers at a meet, jobs will be assigned and communicated prior to the meet.

There are multiple ways that families may fulfill their service hours requirement at OPST:

- Swim meets (majority of opportunities)
- Team functions (i.e. Swim-A-Thon, Team Breakfast, End of Season Celebration, etc.)
- Ad hoc (i.e. help with food, donations, etc.)

Please refer to the Volunteer Job Descriptions in our Handbook to find a job that is most appropriate for your family.

Volunteer opportunities will be posted on TeamUnify for each event as needed and listed under the "Job Sign-Up" button. Most of the opportunities will come via the summer DSA season.

Failure to comply with the Volunteer Requirement Policy, including failure to pay any associated fees, may lead to Membership Termination and/or rejection of applications to join the team in the future.

Officials Incentive Program

OPST USA Swimming Officials Incentive Program (does not apply to DSA meets). The following incentives apply to USA Swimming Referees, Starters, Stroke & Turn Judges, and Administrative Officials registered with OPST, and are applicable upon the completion of certifications required by USA Swimming to work at USA sanctioned or approved meets:

- a. OPST will pay for or reimburse the cost of an annual non-athlete USA Swimming membership
- b. OPST will pay for or reimburse the cost of an USA Swimming required background check every 2 years.
- c. OPST will reimburse 1 session meet fee for 1 swimmer, based on the swimmer/session with the highest meet fee total for each session an OPST official volunteers in that capacity at a USA sanctioned or approved meet. The OPST meet surcharge fee will also be waived.

All information regarding USA Officials within the Maryland Swimming LSC can be found on the Maryland Swimming website. Maryland Swimming - Officials.

Volunteer Job Descriptions

If you have an interest in serving on the OPST Board of Directors, contact the current President. **Summer DSA Season** volunteer positions are outlined below. **USA Meet obligations** vary from meet to meet and are communicated to OPST by the host team. Be prepared to help OPST fulfill these obligations any time your athlete is registered to compete. For most meets, swimmers competing in distances of 500 or longer will need to provide their own timer and counter, parents are expected to fulfill those responsibilities. USA Officials are needed to conduct meets. If you are interested in becoming an official, please contact us opsthammerheads@gmail.com.

Other volunteer opportunities during **Short Course and Long Course seasons** may include various Coordinators as outlined by the Board, lobby door coverage, meet timers, help with social events/parties, etc. Needs will be communicated to families through email, Remind or sign-up on the <u>team website</u>. ALL families are expected to volunteer!

The following positions are filled on a first come first serve basis at the beginning of the DSA summer season and will be needed at EVERY home meet. Number of people required in parentheses:

- 1. **DSA Officials (4)** 1 starter, 1 referee, and 2-4 stroke / turn judges per meet.
- 2. **Clerk of Course (4)** Checks in swimmers before their races and arranges them so that they can get to the right lane in the right heat in the right event.
- 3. **Age Group Parent (22)** 1-2 parents per age/gender group for ALL meets. Assures event information is written on arms, assisting swimmers to clerk of course and starting blocks. Provides general supervision of the group during the meet.

- 4. **Scoring Table (1)** Assists Dolphin Timing system checks after each heat and data input as needed. Organizes timing sheets.
- 5. Ribbon Writers (2) Works at scoring table and places labels on ribbons and files in swimmer folders.
- 6. Meet Runner (1) Collects timer records and delivers them to the scoring table.
- 7. **Announcer (1)** Voice of the meet; announces each event and heat number.
- 8. Shark Shack (2) Staffs concessions and apparel for sale.
- 9. Volunteer Check-in (1) Checks volunteers in and out to ensure service credit hours are awarded.

The positions below will be filled by signing up online (TeamUnify) for each meet. Number of people required is in parentheses:

- 1. **Timers** (12 @ home meets and 5-6 @ away meets). 17 timers are needed for every home meet. We fill 5-6 of those slots with the visiting team. We do offer split sessions to limit the commitment to half the meet.
- 2. **Deck Set-Up (4)** Helps to arrange and set up the deck prior to the meet.
- 3. Deck Take-Down (2) Helps to put the deck back to its original state at the end of the meet.
- 4. Water Runner (1) Ensures officials, timers and other helpers are supplied with water during the meet.
- 5. There will also be volunteer opportunities for team functions such as the Swim-A-Thon, Team Breakfast and End of Season Celebration. Help may be needed with food, donations, or organizing/running the events and will be communicated via email, Remind or sign-up on the <u>team website</u>.

TEAM POLICIES

Parent On Deck Policy

OPST has a closed deck policy. This means that parents are not allowed on deck during practices. This is due to our USA Swimming insurance coverage, and to reduce distractions for swimmers and coaches. It also encourages swimmer autonomy and ownership.

"On deck" for OPST will vary by pool and accessibility.

Designated Parent Observation Areas: If you want to observe your child's practice, you may do so from the following areas only:

- **Sports Core Pool:** The tables from the entry door up to the shallow end of the pool only. Not along the wall in front of the pool or in the back near the slide. Those tables are for swimmers and coaches only.
- Swim & Racquet Club During Practices: Parents must remain in the lobby area to observe practice (past the first set of doors but not past the second set of doors that lead to the outside pool area). Parents are not allowed to sit out on the pool deck during practice.

If parents/guests are not sitting in the appropriate area, they will be asked to move. If there is an on-going issue, the Coaches and/or a Board member may require the parent/guest to leave the premises.

IMPORTANT

- At no time should a non-registered OPST child ever be in the pool unless the pool is open to the public and you
 have paid the entry fee at the front desk. All OPA pool rules apply including that no child under the age of 12 is
 permitted to enter the pool without an adult family member, guardian or babysitter present who has also paid
 the entry fee.
- At no time should a registered OPST swimmer be in the pool before or after their scheduled practice time even when the pool is closed to the public unless they have received prior permission from a coach. Coaches do not want swimmers to get in the water before their practice. If the pool is open to the public and the swimmer wants to remain AFTER practice, they MUST pay the entry fee at the front desk and, again, all OPA pool rules apply.
- When the pool is open to the public, please remember that we are renting the space and sharing it with other paying customers.

Minor Athlete Abuse Prevention Policy (MAAPP)

(Please click on links highlighted below for full policy details)

OPST has adapted and implemented this <u>Minor Athlete Abuse Prevention Policy</u> in full. The Minor Athlete Abuse Prevention Policy must be reviewed and agreed to in writing by all athletes, parents, coaches and other non-athlete members of member clubs on an annual basis.

MAAPP applies to:

- All USA Swimming non-athlete members and adult athlete members;
- Participating non-members (e.g., meet marshals, meet computer operators, timers, etc.);
- LSC and club adult staff and board members; and
- Any other adult authorized to have regular contact with or authority over minor athletes.

MAAPP covers:

- 1. One-on-One Interactions
- 2. Electronic Communications
- 3. Travel
- 4. Locker rooms and changing areas
- 5. Massages and rubdowns/athlete training modalities

Social Media Policy

Purpose: The purpose of this social media policy is to establish guidelines for the appropriate use of social media by Members, Swimmers, and Coaches of OPST. This policy aims to promote positive behavior, protect the well-being of participants, and maintain the integrity and reputation of the organization.

Definition of Social Media: Social media is any form of online or web-based publication, forum or presence that allows interactive communication, including, but not limited to, Facebook, Twitter/X, LinkedIn, Instagram, Snapchat, blogs, Youtube, group messaging, forums, blogs, and other social networking tools or content/photosharing sites used by people to whom these guidelines apply.

Guidelines:

1. Respect and Sportsmanship:

a. Demonstrate respect and sportsmanship in all social media interactions.

b. Avoid creating or engaging in disrespectful or inflammatory discussions, including comments directed towards other participants, coaches, officials, or opposing teams.

2. Confidentiality:

- **a.** Always begin with the assumption that anything you write or post can be read by anyone, anywhere, at any time and once it is published it is 'out there' and cannot be taken back.
- **b.** Respect the privacy of others and refrain from posting personal or private information without consent.

3. Positive Representation:

- **a.** When posting, show proper consideration for how your post will represent the team and affect other people.
- **b.** Refrain from posting content that could reflect negatively on the organization.
- c. Do not use social media to make negative or derogatory comments about issues or concerns that you or others have relating to the team. Such concerns should be expressed directly first to the Head Coach; then, if not satisfied, to the Board of Directors in writing.

4. Content Appropriateness:

- **a.** Do not post or share content that is inappropriate, offensive, discriminatory, or illegal.
- **b.** Exercise caution when sharing photos, videos, or comments to ensure they are appropriate for all audiences, including children and families.

5. Compliance with Policies and Regulations:

- a. Adhere to all applicable laws, regulations, and organizational policies when using social media.
- b. Refrain from engaging in activities that violate copyright or intellectual property rights.

6. Cyberbullying and Harassment:

- **a.** Cyberbullying, harassment, or any form of online abuse will not be tolerated.
- **b.** Report any instances of cyberbullying or harassment to the appropriate authorities or organization officials.

7. Parental Involvement:

- **a.** Parents are encouraged to monitor their children's social media activity and educate them about responsible online behavior.
- **b.** Parents should always lead by example.
- **c.** Failure to comply may result in, but not necessarily be limited to, any of the following actions:
 - i. Warnings
 - **ii.** Restriction from participating in some or all team activities (ie practice, meets, team functions, etc)
 - iii. Suspension or expulsion from the OPST, without refund.
 - **iv.** The result will be handled on a case by case basis, may depend on the severity, and is at the discretion of the Head Coach & Board of Directors.

Action Plan to Prevent Bullying

Bullying of any kind is unacceptable at OPST and will not be tolerated. Bullying is counterproductive to team spirit and can be devastating to a victim. The Club is committed to providing a safe, caring and friendly environment for all of our members. If bullying does occur, all athletes and parents should know that incidents will be dealt with promptly and effectively. Anyone who knows that bullying is happening is expected to tell a coach, board member or athlete/mentor.

Objectives of the Club's Bullying Policy and Action Plan:

- 1. To make it clear that the Club will not tolerate bullying in any form.
- 2. To define bullying and give all board members, coaches, parents and swimmers a good understanding of what bullying is.
- 3. To make it known to all parents, swimmers and coaching staff that there is a policy and protocol should any bullying issues arise.
- 4. To make how to report bullying clear and understandable.
- 5. To spread the word that OPST takes bullying seriously and that all swimmers and parents can be assured that they will be supported when bullying is reported. Please review the full <u>Action Plan to Prevent Bullying</u>.

Health Policy

- 1. If your swimmer is sick please keep them home until:
 - a. Symptoms improve
 - b. They are fever free without medication for 24 hours and/or
 - c. Your physician advises it is safe to return.
- 2. Examples include (but not limited to):
 - a. sore throat, cough, upper and/or lower GI symptoms, COVID, flu, etc.
- 2. If your swimmer is too sick to attend school or other activities, please keep them home from swimming.
- 3. If you have multiple swimmers in the same family:
 - a. Use your discretion or whether to send siblings(s) to practice if another sibling is sick or has tested positive for anything contagious.
 - b. Refer to your physician for guidance.
- 4. Please contact the Head Coach regarding extended absence due to illness.

Other Protection Policies

In addition to the policies and procedures outlined above, please refer to the <u>"OPST Policies"</u> section of our website for essential information regarding the OPST Locker Room Policy, Parent Consent Forms, Media Use Withdrawal and more.

PRACTICE GROUPS

Swimming workouts for members are held daily Monday through Saturday and times vary by season. Check the <u>team</u> website for current schedules.

Practice Groups are divided according to age, ability and level of commitment. Within each group, each swimmer may be assigned a training lane with other swimmers of equal ability or approximate age. This allows for the appropriate physiological development of the swimmer and provides the best possible teaching environment. As a swimmer improves and can increase physical work, the swimmer may be assigned to a more advanced training group ONLY at the discretion of the Coaching Staff. If this change occurs, communication between parent and coach will happen before the swimmer is assigned to a more advanced group, as pricing and practice times may change.

Swimmers are not discouraged from participation in other social, school, or athletic activities outside of OPST; we encourage this. Taking part in other activities allows our athletes to become well-rounded individuals and helps with teaching time management skills. While swimmers are not required to attend every scheduled practice session in some

groups, the more advanced training groups do have attendance requirements that must be met. Swimmers participating according to the practice guidelines set forth by the Coaching Staff will realize the greatest gains.

Movement to the next practice group is at the discretion of the coaches. Coaches will re-evaluate each season.

Coaches are available to answer questions when all practices conclude. It is recommended to arrange time in advance.

The lobby door to the Sports Core pool is locked when the pool is closed to the public and is used exclusively by OPST.

SWIM MEETS

OPST participates in several meets per season. A current meet schedule is available on the <u>team website</u>. Swimmers are expected to attend those meets that are recommended by the Coaching Staff. To measure progress, it is important for swimmers to attend and compete in meets.

OPST currently participates in two leagues to accommodate our needs as a team on the Eastern Shore. The following information is meant to facilitate the understanding of what each league offers to our swimmers. The 2 competition components of our team currently are USA Swimming via the Maryland LSC Swimming and DSA (Delmarva Swim Association). You can read more details about each season on the <u>team website</u>.

All meets require members to declare their commitment to attend via the team website.

Swimmers are expected to be ON TIME to warm-up for meets. This means being prepared and ready to swim at the designated time for warm-up. The Coaching staff recommends swimmers be on deck 20 minutes prior to the start of warmups. It is crucial for athletes to properly warm-up before a competition. Swimmers are also expected to compete and dress in appropriate OPST apparel. No other team apparel will be tolerated. This apparel includes a current team suit and cap.

USA Swim Meets

USA Swimming is the governing body of the sport. It's the standard for swimming regardless of age and ability. It is the level of competitive swimming that will give our swimmers opportunities as they grow in the sport. There is a higher standard for a lot of things, but it is not exclusive based on a swimmer's ability. The higher standard comes in for facilities that host meets, the officials, coaches, referees, and overall organization of a team. There is a place for every swimmer in USA Swimming. The organization and standards of USA Swimming lends itself to producing higher caliber swimmers and more opportunities for everyone.

<u>Maryland Swimming Home</u> – Maryland LSC Swimming website <u>USA Swimming Home</u> – USA Swimming website

USA meets are held throughout the year. Coaches select the meets in which OPST will participate. The Coaching staff will assign the events to be entered in each meet in order to evaluate progress and to determine the focus of future training. Every meet has a limit to the number of events in which a swimmer may participate each session. Each event that a swimmer is entered into has an "Entry Fee" and/or "Facility Fee". These Fees are **non-refundable** after the Head Coach has submitted entries for the meet. Deadlines are not flexible for USA Meets.

DSA Meets

DSA governs our summer league, June-July, in which so many of our swimmers participate, learn to love the sport, and perhaps choose to pursue the sport year- round.

<u>Delmarva Swim Association</u> – Delmarva Swim Association league

The Coaching staff will assign events for each meet in order to evaluate progress and to determine the focus of future training. Requests to swim certain events can be made by completing the notes section when committing your child for a meet and having your swimmer talk to their coach.

<u>DSA meet entries must be declared prior to posted deadlines, unless otherwise noted.</u> No deck entries for DSA meets. Avoid this by closely monitoring DSA meet deadlines on the team website.

Parents are discouraged from taking their swimmers to the pool or beach on days of summer season meets. Please be mindful of your child's hard work by preparing them for competition wisely.

TEAM APPAREL AND GEAR

OPST currently has a sponsorship agreement with Arena. Please try to purchase that brand whenever possible.

Meet Apparel:

- Competition suit (plus an extra). Each Swimmer competing for OPST is required to wear a current Team Suit at all meets. Swimmers are responsible for purchasing a Team Suit. This must be an Arena black suit. Swimmers should always bring an extra suit as a backup.
- Official OPST caps. If a swimmer competes with a cap during a meet they are required to wear OPST cap. Two OPST caps are provided with registration, and additional caps are available for purchase if needed.
- **Goggles (2 pairs).** Swimmers can wear whatever goggles are comfortable to them, but should always carry an extra pair as a backup.
- **Team Shirt.** Swimmers should make every effort to wear OPST apparel to meets (i.e. team t-shirt or additional team gear that can be purchased).

Practice Apparel/Equipment:

- **Practice suit (plus as extra).** Swimmers should avoid wearing their competition suit during practices and should always have an extra suit in their bag as a backup.
- **Practice caps.** It is recommended that swimmers avoid wearing their current official OPST caps during practices to avoid wear and tear.
- **Goggles (2 pairs).** Swimmers can wear whatever goggles are comfortable to them, but should always carry an extra pair as a backup.
- **Practice Equipment.** Each practice group will have different equipment needs which will be communicated during registration and/or posted on the website.

Team Apparel/Gear:

• OPST also offers various logo'd apparel for parents, families and swimmers to purchase. Please refer to the <u>"Team Gear"</u> section on our team website for current offerings.

Appendix 1 - Proper respect during Flag Ceremonies

United States Code Title 36 as amended by the Duncan Hunter National Defense Authorization Act of 2009 §595 §301. National Anthem; Star Spangled Banner.

- **a.** The composition consisting of the words and music known as The Star-Spangled Banner is designated the national anthem of The United States of America.
- **b.** Conduct during rendition of the national anthem:
 - 1. When the flag is displayed:
 - a. Individuals in uniform should give the military salute at the first note of the anthem and maintain

- that position until the last note;
- **b.** Members of the Armed Forces and veterans who are present but not in uniform may render the military salute in the manner provided for those in uniform; and;
- **c.** All other persons present should face the flag and stand at attention with their right hand over the heart, and men not in uniform, if applicable, should remove their headdress with their right hand and hold it at the left shoulder, the hand being over the heart; and
- **2.** When the flag is not displayed, all present should face toward the music and act in the same manner they would if the flag were displayed

Appendix 2 - Grievance Procedure

The following Ocean Pines Swim Team Policy and Agreement is based off of a model grievance policy provided by USA Swimming and outlined in the Minor Athlete Abuse Prevention Policy (MAAPP). The Ocean Pines Swim Team (OPST) Grievance Procedure provides swimmers, parents, coaches, team leaders and employees a system to address and report grievances in a productive, systematic way. Following these Procedures provides the appropriate parties a means to properly investigate, intervene, and take disciplinary action when needed.

Where to Report

- For issues dealing with sexual misconduct, sexual harassment and/or sexually explicit or inappropriate
 communication through social media, please contact <u>U.S. Center for SafeSport</u> at 833-5US-SAFE (587-7233) or
 report online.
- For issues dealing with physical abuse, emotional abuse, criminal charges and the use, sale, or distribution of illegal drugs, please contact USA Swimming Safe Sport at safesport@usaswimming.org, call (719) 866-4578, or report online.
- For issues dealing with known or suspected child abuse, contact State Authorities at 800-91Prevent (800-917-7383 (Maryland).
- For issues dealing with peer-to-peer bullying, coach-athlete bullying, parent issues, violations of the OPST Code
 of Conduct and violations of the Minor Athlete Abuse Prevention Policy (MAAP): These issues are handled at the
 club level following the grievance procedures outlined below.

Whom to Notify of a Grievance (Chain of Command)

Regarding the Conduct of a Swimmer – Contact the swimmer's coach.

Should a parent or swimmer feel another swimmer's conduct is inappropriate or violates the OPST Code of Conduct, the parent/swimmer should discuss these concerns with the coach of the swimmer responsible for the violation. This complaint should be made in person* or in writing. Coaches will ensure the OPST Board of Directors is notified of the complaint and will participate in assessing behavior.

Regarding the Conduct of an Assistant Coach – Contact the Head Coach.

Should a parent or swimmer feel an Assistant Coach's conduct is inappropriate or in violation of any Team policies or procedures, the parent/swimmer should notify the Head Coach of this violation. This complaint should be made in person* or in writing. The Head Coach will ensure that the OPST Board of Directors is notified of the complaint and will participate in assessing behavior.

Regarding Conduct of Head Coach – Notify the OPST Board President.

Should a parent or swimmer feel the Head Coach's conduct is inappropriate or violates any Team policies or procedures, the parent/swimmer should notify the President of the Board of Directors of this violation. This complaint should be made in person or in writing. If the President is not immediately available, this complaint may be presented to any member of the Board of Directors, with notification made in writing to the President. This complaint will be subject to review and discussion by the full Board of Directors.

Regarding Board of Director Member Conduct - Notify the OPST Board President.

Should a parent or swimmer feel a Board Member's conduct is inappropriate or violates any Team policies or procedures, the parent/swimmer should notify the Board President of this violation in person or in writing. If the Board President is the Director whose conduct is in question, the <u>Board Vice President</u> should be notified in writing or in person instead of the Board President. This complaint will be reviewed and discussed by the full Board of Directors.

Regarding Parent or Swim Official Conduct - Notify the Head Coach and Board President.

Should a parent or swimmer feel another OPST parent's or an official's conduct is inappropriate or violates any Team policies or procedures, the parent/swimmer should notify the Head Coach and Board President of this violation in person or in writing. This complaint will be reviewed and discussed by the full Board of Directors.

*Note: With the exception of issues which immediately affect the health and safety of swimmers, all matters should be discussed before or after a coaching session, as coaches should not be expected to deal with issues during water time.

How Grievances Will Be Handled

The Board of Directors have the authority to impose penalties for infractions of the OPST Athlete, Parent and Coach Codes of Conduct or any behavior(s) they deem not conducive to the best interests of the Team or other swimmers. Consequences are at the sole discretion of the coaches and/or OPST Board of Directors and may include, but aren't limited to, verbal warnings, dismissal from practice, contacting parents, temporary suspension from club activities and expulsion. Involved parties will be informed of the processes and range of potential consequences. The U.S. Center for SafeSport, USA Swimming and local law enforcement (if applicable) will be contacted within 24 hours if a coach, parent, or swimmer violates the SafeSport Code for the U.S. Olympic and Paralympic Movements, the USA Swimming Code of Conduct, Athlete Protection Policy, or local laws.

- 1. Gathering Information: The appropriate individuals will contact the person who filed the grievance and the person against whom the grievance is being filed, to ask questions about what happened. In addition, other witnesses may be contacted for more information. It will be the responsibility of the Board of Directors and/or the Head Coach to track, and securely save any information brought forth during a grievance investigation.
- 2. Assessing Behavior: The behavior of the person(s) against which the grievance was brought, will be assessed using team policies and facility rules, USA Swimming Code of Conduct, USA Swimming Safe Sport policies, as well as applicable local and state laws.
- **3. Consequences** will be given, and disciplinary action will be taken, if appropriate. These consequences and disciplinary actions will be decided using the following general guidelines:
 - a. Nature of the misconduct
 - **b.** Severity of the misconduct
 - c. Prior disciplinary actions
 - **d.** Adverse effect of the misconduct
 - e. Application of the Code of Conduct

Appendix 3 - Code of Conduct Administration

Whereas the Ocean Pines Swim Team (OPST) has been established to promote the sport of swimming and in the process, help to develop the character of the individual swimmers;

Whereas, for the orderly operation of the OPST, certain rules and regulations and procedures for enforcing same must be established;

Whereas it is the expressed intention of the OPST to set forth procedures that will aid in identifying behavior the club finds undesirable and define a process for addressing an alleged occurrence.

Therefore, be it resolved that the following shall be the Disciplinary Code & Procedures: This Disciplinary Code shall apply to all behavior occurring during or at an activity or function that is associated with OPST including but not limited to: swim practice, swim meets, team trips, team outings, or individual group outings and addresses objectionable behavior by members of OPST occurring outside of club activities.

Any member or prospective member (swimmer, parent or guardian) of OPST may be denied membership, placed on probation, suspended for a definite or indefinite period of time with or without terms of probation if such member violates the provisions of this Code of Conduct, or aids, abets or encourages another person to violate any of the provisions of this Code of Conduct. Any disciplinary action taken by the OPST negates any rights to full or partial refunds of financial obligations for registration fees and goods, services or other obligations.

The types of objectionable behavior shall be divided into three (3) classifications:

- <u>Class I</u> Shall deal with the behavior that the coach and the OPST Board of Directors considers very severe and disruptive, possibly life threatening and/or in direct violation of governmental laws. These are actions that are so detrimental that it is not desirable to have such a person associated with the team. These behaviors shall be reviewed regardless of whether the act(s) were performed at a club activity or not.
- <u>Class II</u> Shall deal with behavior that is considered disruptive; having a detrimental effect on one's self, other members of the team, or the general public; causes significant damage to the reputation of the club, their coaches and/or the club's Board of Directors; leading to the possible physical or emotional injury of self or other persons.
- <u>Class III</u> Shall deal with behavior that is somewhat disruptive; does not portray the OPST in a good light; and other actions that are not in compliance for good behavior as a member of a team or society in general.

Class I Objectionable Behavior

Unacceptable Behavior (including, but not limited to): Sale or distribution of illegal drugs and/or Marijuana; conviction of felony; conviction of misdemeanor that represents undesirable club behavior; fighting that results in the severe bodily injury of any person; sexual misconduct, unwanted advances or other inappropriate sexually oriented behavior or action directed toward a swimmer, coach or other non-athletic member; physical abuse of any person; any act of fraud, deception or dishonesty; acts of discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, age, gender, national origin or socioeconomic background; violations of any existing terms of probation; violations of any local, state or federal law pending trial and/or decision of the courts system.

Disciplinary Procedure:

- Offending member may immediately be suspended pending review by the Head Coach and the Board of Directors.
- Board shall send notice of hearing to parent/guardian and swimmer, if applicable, via certified mail.
- Hearing before a quorum of Board of Directors with parent/guardian and swimmer, if applicable, being given the opportunity to be present; the facts shall be presented by the Board President or his/her designee; Head Coach(es) shall be present.
- Should any of the member(s) identified to attend fail to appear at the time and date specified, the Board of Directors reserves the right to rule in absentia. Board decision to be mailed to the parent/guardian and swimmer, if applicable, within one week via certified mail.

Recommended Discipline:

 May result in membership termination or other action as determined by the Head coach and the Board of Directors.

Class II Objectionable Behavior

Unacceptable behavior as a member of the OPST at OPST team functions practices and meets. This behavior would include, but not be limited to: possession or use of illegal drugs, alcohol, or tobacco, theft, or significant vandalism.

Disciplinary Procedure:

- Head Coach/Board of Directors shall send notice of hearing to parent/guardian and swimmer, if applicable, via certified mail.
- Hearing before a quorum of Board of Directors with parent/guardian and swimmer, if applicable, being given the opportunity to be present; the facts shall be presented by the Board President or his/her designee; Head Coach(es) shall be present.
- Should any of the member(s) identified to attend fail to appear at the time and date specified, the Board of Directors reserves the right to rule in absentia. Board decision to be mailed to the parent/guardian and swimmer, if applicable, within one week via certified mail.

Recommended Discipline:

- <u>1st Offense</u> Suspension* from the team for a minimum period of thirty (30) days of the swimming season (these days may extend into the next season, if needed).
- **2nd Offense** Suspension* from the team for a minimum period of sixty (60) days of the swimming season (these days may extend into the next season, if needed).
- <u>3rd Offense</u> Shall be considered a violation of Class I Objectionable Behavior and handled according to the disciplinary proceedings of Class I Objectionable Behavior.

Class III Objectionable Behavior

Unacceptable behavior at OPST practices, competitions and team functions that include, but are not limited to: minor vandalism, being disruptive in practices or meets, abusive language or behavior, insubordination to members of the coaching staff, chaperones, or others, littering, not rendering the proper respect to the flag during rendition of the national anthem (see Appendix I) and other acts of misconduct as determined by the coaching staff and the Board of Directors.

^{*} Terms of suspension shall be spelled out by the Board of Directors and must be adhered to by the member in order to be reinstated by the Board at the end of the suspension period. During the periods of suspension, swimmers remain a member of OPST. The member cannot be reinstated until any fees and/or dues that are in arrears are paid in full.

Disciplinary Procedure:

- Any member of the Board of Directors having knowledge of this behavior will work with the Head Coach and Board of Directors to delegate the appropriate discipline to be carried out by the coaching staff.
- Coaching staff may also carry out the appropriate discipline prior to discovery by the Board as long as
 the incident is brought to the attention of the President or Vice-President of the Board at the earliest
 convenience.
- Parents will be notified if anticipated discipline will result in a suspension of a swimmer.

Recommended Discipline:

• As determined by the Board of Directors or coaching staff in their absence (including but not limited to, clean-up duties, suspension from practice, and/or suspension from meet(s)). Repeated Class III offenses may result in the offense being considered a Class II Objectionable Behavior.

During all investigations into allegations of Class I & II offenses, involving questioning or interviewing of the subject swimmer, a parent, or guardian of such swimmer shall be present.